

**OFFICIAL JOURNAL  
OF THE  
SENATE  
OF THE  
STATE OF LOUISIANA**

---

**FOURTEENTH DAY'S PROCEEDINGS**

**Forty-Second Regular Session of the Legislature  
Under the Adoption of the  
Constitution of 1974**

Senate Chamber  
State Capitol  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Thursday, April 7, 2016

The Senate was called to order at 9:05 o'clock A.M. by Hon. John A. Alario Jr., President of the Senate.

**Morning Hour**

**CONVENING ROLL CALL**

The roll being called, the following members answered to their names:

PRESENT

Mr. President	Fannin	Mills
Allain	Gatti	Mizell
Appel	Hewitt	Morrell
Bishop	Johns	Morrish
Boudreaux	LaFleur	Peacock
Carter	Lambert	Perry
Chabert	Long	Riser
Claitor	Luneau	Tarver
Colomb	Martiny	Ward
Cortez	Milkovich	White
Donahue		
Total - 31		

ABSENT

Barrow	Peterson	Thompson
Brown	Smith, G.	Walsworth
Erdey	Smith, J.	
Total - 8		

The President of the Senate announced there were 31 Senators present and a quorum.

**Prayer**

The prayer was offered by Pastor Ken Ellis, following which the Senate joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

**Reading of the Journal**

On motion of Senator Luneau, the reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal of April 6, 2016, was adopted.

**Introduction of  
Senate Concurrent Resolutions**

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 51—**  
BY SENATOR LONG

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend the Natchitoches Central High School boys basketball team on winning the 2016 Class 5A state championship.

The resolution was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 52—**  
BY SENATORS CLAITOR, CORTEZ, FANNIN, HEWITT, LONG, MIZELL,  
MORRISH, PEACOCK, PERRY, RISER AND WALSWORTH  
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To memorialize the United States Congress to call a constitutional convention for the purpose of proposing amendments to limit the power and jurisdiction of the federal government, impose fiscal restraints upon its activities, and limit the terms of office that may be served by its officials and by members of Congress.

The resolution was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions  
on Second Reading**

**SENATE BILL NO. 468— (Substitute of Senate Bill No. 191 by  
Senator Johns)**

BY SENATOR JOHNS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:90(E) and 286(E), relative to holders of alcohol retail dealer's permits for beverages of high alcoholic content; relative to holders of alcohol retail dealer's permits for beverages of low alcoholic content; to provide for live entertainment; to provide for age restrictions; and to provide for related matters.

On motion of Senator Gary Smith the bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

**SENATE BILL NO. 469— (Substitute of Senate Bill No. 290 by  
Senator LaFleur)**

BY SENATOR LAFLEUR

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Civil Code Article 3367, relative to the cancellation of recordation after effect of recordation has ceased; to provide for the cancellation of prescribed state tax liens; to provide certain procedures; and to provide for related matters.

On motion of Senator Ward the bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

**Senate Resolutions on  
Second Reading**

**SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 40—**

BY SENATORS CLAITOR, CORTEZ, ALARIO, ALLAIN, APPEL, BARROW, BISHOP, BOUDREAUX, BROWN, CARTER, CHABERT, COLOMB, DONAHUE, ERDEY, FANNIN, GATTI, HEWITT, JOHNS, LAFLEUR, LAMBERT, LONG, LUNEAU, MARTINY, MILKOVICH, MILLS, MIZELL, MORRELL, MORRISH, PEACOCK, PERRY, PETERSON, RISER, GARY SMITH, JOHN SMITH, TARVER, THOMPSON, WALSWORTH, WARD AND WHITE

A RESOLUTION

To commend Louisiana best selling author James Lee Burke for his literary accomplishments and to recognize the inaugural Dave Robicheaux's Hometown Literary Festival.

On motion of Senator Claitor the resolution was read by title and adopted.

**Message from the House**

**ASKING CONCURRENCE IN  
HOUSE BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS**

April 6, 2016

To the Honorable President and Members of the Senate:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the House of Representatives has finally passed and asks your concurrence in the following House Bills and Joint Resolutions:

HB No. 7	HB No. 188	HB No. 197
HB No. 304	HB No. 659	HB No. 783

April 7, 2016

HB No. 794

HB No. 804

HB No. 888

Respectfully submitted,  
ALFRED W. SPEER  
Clerk of the House of Representatives

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions  
on First Reading**

**HOUSE BILL NO. 7—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE PRICE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Articles 978(B)(1), 989, and 992 and to enact Code of Criminal Procedure Articles 976(A)(4) and 978(E), relative to expungement; to provide for eligibility for an expungement in cases of factual innocence; to provide for the expungement of certain crimes of violence after a cleansing period; to provide for the expungement forms to be used; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 188—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BISHOP  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:317(A) and (B), relative to the Louisiana Catch and Cook Program; to allow retail food establishments to prepare certain alligator meat; to provide for the promulgation of rules; to provide for terms, conditions, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 197—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE PYLANT  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:91.15, relative to offenses affecting health of minors; to create the crime of unlawful operation of an unlicensed child day care center; to provide definitions; to provide criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 304—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES MAGEE, ABRAHAM, AMEDEE, BACALA, BAGLEY, BAGNERIS, BERTHELOT, BISHOP, CHAD BROWN, CARMODY, COUSSAN, COX, CROMER, DAVIS, DEVILLIER, DWIGHT, EMERSON, FOIL, LANCE HARRIS, HAVARD, HAZEL, HILL, HORTON, HOWARD, IVEY, JACKSON, JENKINS, MIKE JOHNSON, LEBAS, MACK, MIGUEZ, GREGORY MILLER, POPE, PYLANT, RICHARD, SCHEXNAYDER, SEABAUGH, STOKES, AND ZERINGUE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1379.3(W), relative to concealed handgun permits; to provide for an exemption from fees for veterans of the United States Armed Forces; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 659—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE JAMES  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 13:1898(A) and to enact R.S. 13:1898(D), relative to the collection of certain fees; to provide for a maximum collection fee on unpaid fines, forfeitures, penalties, or costs; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 783—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE ABRAMSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:2456(B), 2457(A)(1), (B), and (C), and 2461 and to enact R.S. 51:2457(A)(5) and (6), (D), (E), and (F), relative to the Louisiana Quality Jobs Program; to provide relative to incentive rebates; to provide for definitions; to provide relative to sales and use tax rebates; to provide for a project facility expense rebate; to extend the termination date of the program; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 794—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE ABRAMSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:3121(C)(3)(a)(ii) and (4), relative to the Competitive Projects Payroll Incentive Program; to provide for a sales and use tax rebate; to extend the termination date of the program; to provide for rule promulgation; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 804—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE PUGH  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:3397(B)(1) and (3), 3411, 3415.10, 3415.15(A) and to enact R.S. 37:3415.22, relative to the regulation of real estate appraisers and appraisal management companies; provides for licensing classifications and requirements; to regulate record keeping requirements; to change a sunset provision; to regulate real estate appraiser compensation; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 888—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE PIERRE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:505(B)(2), relative to license plates; to modify the notice requirement for canceled license plates applicable to dealers who resell trade-in vehicles; to extend the notice requirement for canceled license plates for such dealers to leased vehicles; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

**Message from the House**

**ASKING CONCURRENCE IN  
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

April 6, 2016

To the Honorable President and Members of the Senate:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the House of Representatives has finally passed and asks your concurrence in the following House Concurrent Resolutions:

HCR No. 57

Respectfully submitted,  
ALFRED W. SPEER  
Clerk of the House of Representatives

### House Concurrent Resolutions on First Reading

#### HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 57—

BY REPRESENTATIVE HODGES

#### A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To express support for the people of Israel and for their right to live in freedom and to defend themselves, to recognize the longstanding friendship between the people of Israel and the people of Louisiana, to condemn any and all efforts to boycott, divest from, and sanction Israel, and to extend best wishes to the people of Israel for peace, security, and prosperity.

The resolution was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

### Rules Suspended

Senator Fannin asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to advance to:

### House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 40—

BY REPRESENTATIVE REYNOLDS

#### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 11:1762(A) and (B), relative to reemployed retirees in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System; to require contributions to the retirement system during reemployment and to provide for disposition of such contributions upon termination of reemployment; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Retirement.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 97—

BY REPRESENTATIVES SMITH AND HORTON

#### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:81(Y) and 3996(B)(35), relative to requirements for posting the state child protection toll-free hotline number in public schools; to provide that public school governing authorities adopt rules and regulations to require each public school under its jurisdiction to post on its website the state child protection toll-free hotline number; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Education.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 109—

BY REPRESENTATIVE TERRY BROWN

#### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:463.4(B)(6), relative to hang tags for persons with mobility impairments; to provide for the issuance of multiple hang tags for persons with mobility impairments; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 135—

BY REPRESENTATIVES TERRY LANDRY AND SMITH

#### AN ACT

To enact R.S. 46:56.1, relative to records of persons prohibited from possessing firearms; to provide relative to determinations which would prohibit persons from possessing, shipping, transporting, or receiving firearms pursuant to state and federal law; to require the submission of certain records to the Louisiana Supreme Court; to provide that the release of such information does not violate patient confidentiality; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary B.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 146—

BY REPRESENTATIVES MORENO, EDMONDS, AND AMEDEE

#### AN ACT

To enact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 895(O), relative to limitations of liability for court-approved mentors; to provide a limitation of liability to certain persons mentoring offenders on probation; to provide a limitation of liability for the court, and court officers, agents, and employees; to provide definitions; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary A.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 147—

BY REPRESENTATIVE PIERRE

#### AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1137.3(E)(2), relative to entities in possession of automated external defibrillators; to require that each high school in certain parishes have an automated external defibrillator on its premises; to provide for a legislative declaration; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Education.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 171—

BY REPRESENTATIVES HODGES, BAGLEY, COX, HENSGENS,

HILFERTY, HORTON, MIKE JOHNSON, LEBAS, POPE, AND WILLMOTT

#### AN ACT

To enact Subpart D of Part VI of Chapter 5-A of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:1086.1 through 1086.4, relative to prevention of certain conditions affecting the health and safety of newborns and young children; to provide for definitions and findings; to establish requirements of birthing centers regarding delivery of information on shaken baby syndrome and sudden unexpected infant death; to authorize certain public awareness activities by the Department of Health and Hospitals; to provide for administrative rulemaking; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 217—

BY REPRESENTATIVE HOFFMANN

#### AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:429, relative to educational leadership certification; to provide for the qualifications for educational leadership certification; to require that an individual who meets the qualifications shall be granted an educational leadership certificate by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education for employment as a supervisor, director, or coordinator of special education; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Education.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 227—

BY REPRESENTATIVE PYLANT

#### AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:130.1(A)(4), relative to obstruction of justice; to provide for additional elements of the crime of obstruction of justice; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary C.

April 7, 2016

**HOUSE BILL NO. 230—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES SMITH AND HUNTER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:1302(4) and 1309(A)(1), relative to early voting; to provide for the period for conducting early voting; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 248—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES CARMODY AND WILLMOTT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:463.109(A), relative to motor vehicle special prestige license plates; to authorize the "In God We Trust" license plate for motorcycles; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 267—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1025(A), (B), and (C), relative to penalties for transactions involving drug paraphernalia; to amend the penalty provisions for such offenses; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary C.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 275—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES GREGORY MILLER, ADAMS, AMEDEE, BACALA, BAGLEY, BISHOP, BROADWATER, CARMODY, STEVE CARTER, CONNICK, DEVILLIER, EDMONDS, FALCONER, GAROFALO, LANCE HARRIS, HAVARD, HAZEL, HILFERTY, HOFFMANN, HOLLIS, HORTON, MIKE JOHNSON, NANCY LANDRY, LOPINTO, MACK, MAGEE, MIGUEZ, JAY MORRIS, PEARSON, PUGH, PYLANT, SCHRODER, SEABAUGH, SHADOIN, STOKES, AND ZERINGUE  
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to add Article I, Section 10.1 of the Constitution of Louisiana and to repeal Article I, Section 10(B) and (C) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to public office; to prohibit a person who is convicted of a felony from qualifying for election for or holding elective office and from being appointed to or holding appointive office; to provide for exceptions; to provide for definitions; to remove obsolete provisions relative to disqualification from seeking or holding public office; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 290—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE GISCLAIR  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:56(A)(5) and (7), 305(B)(3), 435(A) and (B), 435.1(A), 435.1.1(A)(2), and 436(A), relative to oyster harvesting gear; to change the name of certain gear from "dredge" to "scraper"; to provide for limitations on the dimensions and use of scrapers on the public seed grounds and natural reefs; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Natural Resources.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 303—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LEOPOLD  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:303.6(D), relative to oyster harvester licenses; to provide for certain qualifications for holding an oyster harvester license; to require successful completion of an oyster harvester education program; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Natural Resources.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 381—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HAVARD  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:1607, R.S. 28:21(A), 22.7(A), and 25.1(A), R.S. 36:259(C)(10), and R.S. 40:2142(A), relative to East Louisiana State Hospital; to rename East Louisiana State Hospital as Warren Taylor Price, Jr. State Hospital; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 385—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HAZEL  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:110.1.2, relative to offenses affecting law enforcement; to create the crime of providing false, nonexistent, or incomplete declaration of residence for bail; to provide elements of the offense; to provide criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary C.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 386—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES HOFFMANN, BAGLEY, COX, HENSGENS, HORTON, JACKSON, MIKE JOHNSON, ROBERT JOHNSON, LEBAS, MAGEE, DUSTIN MILLER, AND POPE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1061.10(D)(2), 1061.16(B), 1061.17(B)(3), (4)(b), (5), (6), and (8), and 1061.18(D), relative to regulation of abortion; to revise the time period prescribed for certain activities that are required to occur prior to an abortion; to provide for the time required to elapse between performance of an obstetric ultrasound and performance of an abortion; to provide for the time required to elapse between delivery of certain information to a woman seeking an abortion and performance of the abortion; to provide relative to conditions for consent to an abortion to be deemed voluntary and informed; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 420—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ABRAHAM  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:578.15(A), relative to the Louisiana Wild Seafood Certification Program; to provide for certain criteria to apply when evaluating whether fish qualify for designation under the program; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Natural Resources.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 423—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BISHOP  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:637(B) and (E), relative to reptiles and amphibians; to provide for records required for the transfer or sale of reptiles and amphibians; to provide for the completion and return of commercial receipt forms; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Natural Resources.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 442—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE ROBERT JOHNSON  
AN ACT

To authorize the secretary of the Department of Public Safety and Corrections to rename the correctional facility located at Cottonport, Louisiana, as the Raymond LaBorde Correctional Center; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 470—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE DANAHAY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:55(A)(4)(b) and to enact R.S. 18:24(A)(6), relative to registrars of voters; to provide relative to merit evaluations of a registrar; to provide relative to appeals of such evaluations; to provide relative to the duties and authority of the State Board of Election Supervisors; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 480—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE JACKSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:1271(B)(2)(introductory paragraph) and (3), and to enact R.S. 37:1271.1, relative to physicians practicing telemedicine; to provide conditions and authorizations relative to the practice of telemedicine in licensed healthcare facilities; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 488—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES JACKSON, BAGLEY, COX, HENSGENS, HORTON, MIKE JOHNSON, LEBAS, MAGEE, DUSTIN MILLER, JAY MORRIS, AND POPE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1061.10(A)(1), relative to regulation of abortion; to provide for qualifications of physicians who perform elective abortions; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 495—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MORENO  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:572.5, relative to pardons; to provide for information to be provided to the Board of Pardons; to establish a fee for conducting pardon investigations; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary B.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 498—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE POPE  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:2193.5, relative to pediatric day healthcare facilities; to provide for a moratorium on additional licenses for such facilities; to provide for exceptions to the moratorium; to provide for the duration of the moratorium; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 582—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES JACKSON AND HOFFMANN  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:2(B)(32) and 37.2 and R.S. 15:642(2)(b), relative to aggravated assault upon a peace officer; to amend the crime of aggravated assault upon a peace officer

with a firearm; to remove the element that the offense be committed with a firearm; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Judiciary C.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 614—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MORENO  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:1310(A)(2) and to enact R.S. 18:1308(A)(1)(d), relative to voting absentee by mail; to provide for the electronic transmission of voting materials to certain voters under certain circumstances; to provide relative to the procedures and requirements for voting using such materials; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 637—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STOKES  
AN ACT

To enact Chapter 27-B of Title 51 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 51:1949.1, relative to fees for automobile rentals; to authorize the inclusion of certain mandatory fees as separate charges in a rental agreement; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 685—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE WHITE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:408(B)(2)(a)(ii) and to enact R.S. 32:408(B)(8), relative to test results submitted to the office of motor vehicles; to provide for the electronic submission of the driving skills test to the office of motor vehicles; to remove a requirement identifying the vehicle used in the driving skills test; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 714—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE FOIL  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 12:1-124(B), 1-128(B)(introductory paragraph) and (2), 1-140(15C), 1-141(D)(1)(introductory paragraph) and (3) and (J)(introductory paragraph), 1-202(A)(5) and (B)(6) and (E), 1-302(introductory paragraph), 1-303(A)(introductory paragraph) and (D), 1-401(D)(introductory paragraph) and (2), 1-601(C)(introductory paragraph) and (1), 1-621(F)(2)(a)(introductory paragraph), 1-622(D)(introductory paragraph), 1-623(B)(introductory paragraph), 1-624(B)(introductory paragraph), 1-703(A)(introductory paragraph), 1-721(E)(2)(introductory paragraph), 1-725(A), (C), and (D), 1-727, 1-802, 1-805(B) and (E), 1-820(C), 1-831(A)(1), 1-833(C)(1)(introductory paragraph), 1-842(C)(introductory paragraph), 1-851(A)(introductory paragraph) and (1), 1-854(A)(introductory paragraph) and (3), 1-860(5), 1-870(A), 1-1022, 1-1106(A)(introductory paragraph), 1-1107(A)(9) and (F)(introductory paragraph) and (2), 1-1301(5.1)(introductory paragraph), 1-1432(C)(introductory paragraph), 1-1435(F), 1-1436(D)(2)(b), 1-1444(A), and 1-1602(F)(introductory paragraph) and to enact R.S. 12:1-143(A)(5), 1-202(B)(7) and (F), 1-709, 1-832(D), 1-870(C), 1-955(F) and 1-1705, relative to corporations; to provide for qualifications of directors; to provide relative to business opportunities; to provide for remote participation in shareholders' meetings; to provide relative to quorum and voting requirements; to provide relative to board of director meetings; to provide relative to protection against monetary liability; to provide for required disclosures; to provide for service of process on foreign entities; to provide

relative to public corporation bylaws provisions relating to the election of directors; to provide for previous delivery of a share certificate for withdrawal by an oppressed shareholder; to provide a transition rule for reinstatement of corporations with revoked charters; to provide for technical corrections; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

Rules Suspended

Senator Peacock asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to advance to:

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading Reported by Committees

SENATE BILL NO. 21— BY SENATOR BOUDREAU

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:2018.4(H), relative to the Louisiana Obesity Prevention and Management Commission; to provide for a termination date of the commission; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare. The bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 56— BY SENATOR JOHNS

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:1006(G), relative to the state prescription monitoring program; to provide for rulemaking regarding standards for prescription monitoring information; and to provide for related matters.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare. The bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 112— BY SENATOR BARROW

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:563(11), (12), (13), and (14), 589(A), 590(A)(1), and 599(A)(2)(f) and to enact R.S. 37:563(15), and 591.1, relative to the practice of cosmetology; to provide relative to mobile salons; to provide relative to certain definitions, terms, procedures, requirement, effects, certificates of registration, and fees; to provide for the promulgation and adoption of administrative rules; and to provide for related matters.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs. The bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 114— BY SENATOR LAFLEUR

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 36:254(L), relative to the powers and duties of the secretary; to provide for approval for salary adjustments or cost of living adjustments; to provide for covered management boards; to provide for covered human services districts; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 114 by Senator LaFleur

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 10, after "L." delete the remainder of the line

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 11, change "any" to "Any"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 11, after "salary" change "adjustments" to "adjustment"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 11, after "living" change "adjustments" to "adjustment"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 15, after "28:912" insert: "shall not be granted in any year after a deficit is declared without express written approval of two-thirds of the members of the respective governing board. The express written approval shall be submitted to the secretary in accordance with the reporting provided for in R.S. 36:803"

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 117— BY SENATOR MILLS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 46:153.3(B)(2)(a)(iv), the introductory paragraph of (D)(2), (D)(2)(c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (k), and (p), and (D)(5)(b) and (c) and to repeal R.S. 46:153.3(B)(1)(b), (c), (d), and (e), (B)(2)(d), (B)(3) and (4), (C)(2) and (3), and (D)(5)(d) and (e), relative to the Medicaid Pharmaceutical and Therapeutics Committee; to remove legislative intent and expired implementation restrictions; to remove references to committees that no longer exist; to remove provisions that have been sunset by subsequent legislation; to change the Pharmaceutical and Therapeutics Committee membership selection criteria; to change terminology; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 117 by Senator Mills

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete line 12 and insert "Section 1. R.S. 46:153.3(B)(2)(a)(iv), the introductory paragraph of (D)(2), (D)(2)(c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (k), and (p), and (D)(5)(b) and (c) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, line 5, after "program" delete "recommended"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 3, lines 5 and 6, delete "by the Louisiana Pharmacists Association"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 3, line 6, after "independent pharmacist" insert "recommended by the Louisiana Independent Pharmacies Association"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, line 7, after "pharmacy" insert "**recommended by the Louisiana Pharmacists Association**"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 4, line 11, after "disease." insert: "**When a new drug that is included in the Medicaid Pharmaceutical and Therapeutics Committee process is approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration, the drug shall be reviewed at the next Medicaid Pharmaceutical and Therapeutics Committee meeting.**"

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 122—  
BY SENATOR BARROW

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:411(A), relative to advertisements; to provide for untrue or misleading advertisements; to prohibit certain forms of untrue or misleading advertisements; to provide certain terms and conditions; and to provide for related matters.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs. The bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 128—  
BY SENATOR MARTINY

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 9:4757(5) and 4759(3), (4), (5), (8), (9), (10), and (11) and to enact R.S. 9:4757(6), (7), and (8), and 4759(12), (13), and (14), relative to self-service storage facilities; to provide for definitions; to provide for liens and privileges; to provide for notices; to provide for advertisements; to provide relative to late fees and reasonable charges; to provide for certain terms, conditions, and procedures; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

**SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection and International Affairs to Original Senate Bill No. 128 by Senator Martiny

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, delete line 24 and insert "**mail to the last known address of the lessee verified mail to the last known address of the lessee, and electronic mail if the email address is provided by the lessee in the rental agreement.**"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, delete lines 19 and 20 and insert "required. **Within ten days after receipt of the notice, or within ten days after its mailing whichever is earlier, At least ten days after its mailing, or at least ten days after the date by which payment is demanded, whichever is later,** an advertisement of the sale or other

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 3, deletes lines 23 through 27 and insert "facility is located and the owner of a self-storage facility may publish an advertisement of the sale on a publicly accessible website that conducts personal property auctions."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 4, at the end of line 24, insert "**Any tower shall be licensed pursuant to the Louisiana Towing and Storage Act, R.S. 32:1711 et seq.**"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 5, line 25, after "**space and the**" delete the remainder of the line and delete line 26 and insert "**lessor shall not be liable for any claims in excess of any such stated value.**"

On motion of Senator Martiny, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 189—  
BY SENATOR JOHNS

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:978(E)(3), relative to prescription drugs; to provide for an exception from pharmacist dispensing limits on certain drugs; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare. The bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 210—  
BY SENATOR BARROW

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact the introductory paragraph of R.S. 40:2154 and to enact R.S. 40:2154(B), relative to behavioral health services rendered to specialty courts; to exempt from licensure requirements providers furnishing behavioral health services to certain specialty courts; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 210 by Senator Barrow

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, lines 16 and 17, after "**person**" delete "**or facility**"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 1, after "**person**" delete "**or facility**"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 1, after "**certified**" delete "**or**" and insert "1"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 1, after "**registered**" insert "**or credentialed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 2, after "**law**" insert "1"

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 309—  
BY SENATOR CLAITOR

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:3387.1(A) and 3387.2(A), relative to supervision requirements for certain addictive disorder counselors in certain custodial environments; to provide that the requirement for supervision of certified addictive disorder counselors and registered addictive disorder counselors is waived in certain custodial environments; and to provide for related matters.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare. The bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 337—  
BY SENATOR MARTINY

AN ACT

To enact Part VIII of Chapter 17 of Title 3 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 3:2511, relative to retail pet stores; to provide relative to the sale of dogs and cats by retail pet stores; to prohibit the sale of certain dogs and cats in retail pet stores; to require certain signs, reports and records; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection and International Affairs to Original Senate Bill No. 337 by Senator Martiny

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "signs" and before "and records" delete ", reports"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 14, change "county" to "parish"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 3, line 8, delete "following:" and delete lines 9 through 14 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 3, at the beginning of line 15, delete "(4) The" and insert "name of the breeder, the"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, delete lines 18 through 21 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 3, line 22, change "F." to "E."

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, line 28, change "G." to "F."

On motion of Senator Martiny, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 350—  
BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:39.1(B), relative to vital records; to provide for issuance of long-form birth records or death certificates; to provide for payment of fees for these certificates; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 350 by Senator Luneau

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "(B)" insert "(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, delete "long-form"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 6, after "(B)" insert "(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 17, change "fifteen" to "nineteen"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, delete lines 1 through 29

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on Revenue and Fiscal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 360—  
BY SENATOR MILLS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1155.2(8), relative to the Louisiana Physician Order for Scope of Treatment; to provide for definitions; to provide for form modifications; to provide for specific language to be utilized on the form; to provide for mandatory fields; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 360 by Senator Mills

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 6, after "Treatment" insert "(LaPOST)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 8, after "order" delete "sheet" and insert "form"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 9, after "and" delete "wishes" and insert "preferences"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 10, after "section." insert "LaPOST complements an Advance Directive and is not intended to replace that document."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 13, after "middle" delete "initial" and insert "name"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, line 19, after "person" delete "has no" and on line 20, delete "pulse" and insert "is unresponsive, pulseless"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, between lines 24 and 25 insert "(g) A box containing the following statement: When not in cardiopulmonary arrest, follow orders in B and C."

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, line 25, change "(g)" to "(h)"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, line 13, after "treatments" delete "."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, line 14, after "including" delete "IV"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 3, line 14, after "and" insert "IV"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 4, line 6, delete "(h)" and insert "(i)"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 4, line 14, after "one" delete "in each" and on line 15, delete "column"

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 5, line 1, delete "(i)" and insert "(j)"

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 5, line 1, after "Summary" delete "of goals"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 5, line 3, after "area" delete the remainder of the line

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 5, line 5, after "Patient" insert "**(Patient has capacity)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 5, line 6, after "representative" insert "**(PHCR)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 5, line 11, after "representative" delete "qualified patient" and insert "**Qualified Patient**"

AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 5, line 17, after "**Advance**" delete "**directive**" and insert "**Directive**"

AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 5, line 19, after "**Advance**" delete "**directive**" and insert "**Directive**"

AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 5, line 20, after "**No**" delete "**advance directive**" and insert "**Advance Directive**"

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 5, line 21, after "**in**" delete "**advance directive**" and insert "**Advance Directive**"

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 5, line 27, delete "**(j)**" and insert "**(k)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 5, line 28, after "**a date**" delete "**is**" and insert "**and signature are**"

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 6, line 1, delete "**(k)**" and insert "**(l)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 6, line 3, after "**date**" delete "**is**" and insert "**and signature are**"

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 6, line 4, delete "**(l)**" and insert "**(m)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 6, between lines 8 and 9, insert "**(n) A field with last name, first name, middle name, and date of birth.**"

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 6, line 9, delete "**(m)**" and insert "**(o)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 6, line 16, after "a physician" insert "**and the patient or PHCR**"

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 6, line 16, after "Verbal" delete "physician"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 6, line 17, after "acceptable" delete "with follow-up signature by physician in accordance with" and on line 18, delete "Louisiana law" and insert "**from physician and verbal consent may be obtained from patient or PHCR according to facility/community policy**"

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 7, line 2, delete "**40:1299.53**" and insert "**40:1159.4**"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 7, line 3, delete "**or has designated that the PHCR authority is effective immediately**"

AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 7, delete lines 4 through 6

AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 7, line 7, change "**(ee)**" to "**(dd)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 38

On page 7, line 9, change "**(ff)**" to "**(ee)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 39

On page 7, line 11, change "**(gg)**" to "**(ff)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 40

On page 7, line 12, after "chosen" delete ""do not attempt resuscitation"" and insert ""**Do Not Attempt Resuscitation**""

AMENDMENT NO. 41

On page 7, line 13, change "**(hh)**" to "**(gg)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 42

On page 7, line 22, change "**(ii)**" to "**(hh)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 43

On page 7, line 23, after "with" delete "comfort" and insert "**Comfort**"

AMENDMENT NO. 44

On page 7, line 25, change "**(ji)**" to "**(ii)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 45

On page 7, line 25, change "**selective**" to "**Selective**"

AMENDMENT NO. 46

On page 7, line 26, change "**comfort**" to "**Comfort**"

AMENDMENT NO. 47

On page 7, line 28, change "**(kk)**" to "**(jj)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 48

On page 7, line 28, after "**(kk)**" delete "A parenteral" and insert "**Parenteral**"

AMENDMENT NO. 49

On page 7, line 29, change "comfort" to "**Comfort**"

AMENDMENT NO. 50

On page 8, line 2, change "**(ll)**" to "**(kk)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 51

On page 8, line 3, change "**selective**" to "**Selective**"

AMENDMENT NO. 52

On page 8, line 4, change "full" to "**Full**"

AMENDMENT NO. 53

On page 8, line 5, change "**(mm)**" to "**(ll)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 54

On page 8, line 7, after "individual" delete ";"

AMENDMENT NO. 55

On page 8, line 9, change "**(nn)**" to "**(mm)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 56

On page 8, line 11, change "**(oo)**" to "**(nn)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 57

On page 8, line 24, change ""void"" to ""**VOID**""

April 7, 2016

AMENDMENT NO. 58

On page 9, line 5, change "voided and new form completed" and insert "Voided and New Form Completed"

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

Rules Suspended

Senator Claitor asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to recall Senate Bill No. 369 from the Committee on Judiciary B.

SENATE BILL NO. 369—

BY SENATOR CLAITOR

AN ACT

To repeal Part XV of Chapter 7 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 15:1171 through 1179, relative to administrative remedy procedures for the Department of Public Safety and Corrections; to repeal provisions of law declared unconstitutional; and to provide for related matters.

On motion of Senator Claitor the bill was read by title and withdrawn from the files of the Senate.

Rules Suspended

Senator Gatti asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to recommit a bill.

SENATE BILL NO. 147—

BY SENATOR GATTI

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3995(K), relative to charter school funding; to provide for the calculation of the proportionate unfunded accrued liability contribution to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana; to provide for payment of the proportionate contribution; to provide for application of such payment; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Senator Gatti moved to recommit the bill from the Committee on Education to the Committee on Retirement.

Without objection, so ordered.

Senate Concurrent Resolutions on Second Reading

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 46—

BY SENATOR COLOMB

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend and congratulate the Southern Lab High School football team on winning the 2015 Division IV state championship.

The concurrent resolution was read by title. Senator Colomb moved to adopt the Senate Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table listing names of senators who voted 'YEAS' for Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 46.

Cortez
Donahue
Total - 34

Mills
Mizell

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Barrow
Long
Total - 5

Peterson
Smith, J.

Thompson

The Chair declared the Senate adopted the Senate Concurrent Resolution and ordered it sent to the House.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 47—

BY SENATOR COLOMB

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To create the State Capitol Accessibility Advisory Commission to study and make recommendations to the legislature for a strategic outlook to make sure the American with Disabilities Act of 1990, is sufficiently implemented with respect to the state capitol building and surrounding infrastructure.

The resolution was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 48—

BY SENATOR COLOMB

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the governor, the speaker of the House of Representatives, and the president of the Senate to take the appropriate steps to preserve the State Capitol Building.

The resolution was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 49—

BY SENATOR WALSWORTH

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend and congratulate Donald Harrison Shows on being inducted into the Louisiana High School Sports Hall of Fame.

The concurrent resolution was read by title. Senator Walsworth moved to adopt the Senate Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table listing names of senators who voted 'YEAS' for Senate Concurrent Resolutions No. 47, 48, and 49.

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Barrow
Bishop
Total - 6

Long
Peterson

Smith, J.
Thompson

The Chair declared the Senate adopted the Senate Concurrent Resolution and ordered it sent to the House.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 50—

BY SENATOR PEACOCK

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend Robert A. Barish, MD, Chancellor of Louisiana State University Health Science Center in Shreveport, for extraordinary leadership which has resulted in improved academic accreditation and increased health care services for the populous of North Louisiana and the state at-large.

The concurrent resolution was read by title. Senator Peacock moved to adopt the Senate Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. President, Erdey, Mizell, Allain, Fannin, Morrish, Appel, Gatti, Peacock, Boudreaux, Hewitt, Perry, Brown, Johns, Riser, Carter, LaFleur, Smith, G., Chabert, Lambert, Tarver, Claitor, Luneau, Walsworth, Colomb, Martiny, Ward, Cortez, Milkovich, White, Donahue, Mills. Total - 32

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns: Barrow, Morrell, Thompson, Bishop, Peterson, Long, Smith, J. Total - 7

The Chair declared the Senate adopted the Senate Concurrent Resolution and ordered it sent to the House.

House Concurrent Resolutions on Second Reading

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 55—

BY REPRESENTATIVE NANCY LANDRY

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend Mary Nell Harper upon being named the first female district chief in the Lafayette Fire Department.

The resolution was read by title. Senator Cortez moved to concur in the House Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. President, Erdey, Morrell, Allain, Fannin, Morrish, Appel, Gatti, Peacock, Bishop, Hewitt, Perry, Boudreaux, Johns, Riser, Brown, LaFleur, Smith, G., Carter, Lambert, Tarver, Chabert, Luneau, Walsworth, Claitor, Martiny, Ward, Colomb, Milkovich, White, Cortez, Mills, Donahue, Mizell. Total - 34

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns: Barrow, Peterson, Thompson, Long, Smith, J. Total - 5

The Chair declared the Senate concurred in the House Concurrent Resolution and ordered it returned to the House.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 56—

BY REPRESENTATIVE PIERRE

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To recognize Thursday, April 14, 2016, as Acadiana Day at the state capitol.

The resolution was read by title. Senator Cortez moved to concur in the House Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. President, Donahue, Mizell, Allain, Erdey, Morrell, Appel, Fannin, Morrish, Bishop, Gatti, Peacock, Boudreaux, Hewitt, Perry, Brown, Johns, Riser, Carter, LaFleur, Smith, G., Chabert, Luneau, Tarver, Claitor, Martiny, Walsworth, Colomb, Milkovich, Ward, Cortez, Mills, White. Total - 33

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns: Barrow, Long, Smith, J., Lambert, Peterson, Thompson. Total - 6

The Chair declared the Senate concurred in the House Concurrent Resolution and ordered it returned to the House.

Reconsideration

The vote by which Senate Bill No. 187 failed to pass on Wednesday, April 6, 2016, was reconsidered.

SENATE BILL NO. 187—

BY SENATOR BARROW

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:913(3)(a)(vii) and (ix), (8), and the introductory paragraph of (9), and to enact Part V of Chapter 11 of Title 37 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 37:1018.1, relative to advanced practice registered nursing; to provide relative to collaborative practice agreement requirements for advanced practice registered nurses; to establish an exemption to such requirements for certain nurses; to provide for qualifications for the exemption; to provide for certification and grounds for revocation of the exemption; to provide for duties and powers of the Louisiana State Board of Nursing; to provide for definitions; to provide for administrative rulemaking; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

April 7, 2016

On motion of Senator Long, the previously amended bill was read by title and returned to the Calendar, subject to call.

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage

Bagneris Rule

Senator Donahue moved to invoke the rule to temporarily pass over controversial Senate Bills on Third Reading and Final Passage with the intention of taking them up later, in their regular order.

Without objection, so ordered.

SENATE BILL NO. 33— BY SENATOR GATTI

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:87.3, relative to the sale and transport of fetal organs and body parts; to prohibit the sale of fetal organs and body parts resulting from an induced abortion; to prohibit the transport of fetal organs and body parts with the intent to engage in a prohibited sale; to provide definitions; to provide penalties; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Gatti moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. President, Donahue, Mizell, Allain, Erdey, Morrell, Appel, Fannin, Morrish, Barrow, Gatti, Peacock, Bishop, Hewitt, Perry, Boudreaux, LaFleur, Riser, Brown, Lambert, Smith, G., Carter, Long, Tarver, Chabert, Luneau, Walsworth, Claitor, Martiny, Ward, Colomb, Milkovich, White, Cortez, Mills. Total - 35

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 2 columns: Johns, Peterson, Smith, J., Thompson. Total - 4

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Gatti moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 42— BY SENATOR RISER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Civil Procedure Art. 4843(E), to enact R.S. 33:455 and to repeal R.S. 13:1899(E) and 2115, relative to courts; to abolish the City Court of Winnsboro and the offices thereof; to establish the Mayor's Court for the City of Winnsboro; to provide effective dates; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Riser moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. President, Cortez, Mizell, Allain, Donahue, Morrell, Appel, Erdey, Morrish, Barrow, Fannin, Peacock, Bishop, Gatti, Perry, Boudreaux, Hewitt, Riser, Brown, LaFleur, Smith, G., Carter, Luneau, Tarver, Chabert, Martiny, Walsworth, Claitor, Milkovich, Ward, Colomb, Mills, White. Total - 33

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns: Johns, Lambert, Long, Peterson, Smith, J., Thompson. Total - 6

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Riser moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 73—

BY SENATORS WHITE AND CARTER AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:108(B)(1)(e), relative to the crime of resisting an officer; to add intentional crossing of a police cordon to the definition of "obstruction of" an officer; to provide additional definitions; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator White moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. President, Cortez, Mills, Allain, Donahue, Mizell, Appel, Erdey, Morrish, Barrow, Fannin, Peacock, Bishop, Gatti, Perry, Boudreaux, Hewitt, Riser, Brown, LaFleur, Smith, G., Carter, Lambert, Tarver, Chabert, Luneau, Walsworth, Claitor, Martiny, Ward, Colomb, Milkovich, White. Total - 33

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns: Johns, Long, Morrell, Peterson, Smith, J., Thompson. Total - 6

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator White moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

**SENATE BILL NO. 179—**  
BY SENATOR RISER

AN ACT

To enact Chapter 21-B of Title 25 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 25:951 through 959, relative to the Louisiana Human Remains Protection and Control Act; to provide relative to the control and management of human remains; to provide relative to legislative intent; to provide definitions; to provide penalties; to provide exemptions; to provide relative to enforcement; and to provide for related matters.

**Floor Amendments**

Senator Martiny sent up floor amendments.

**SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Senator Martiny on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 179 by Senator Riser

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 12, following "**Burial Sites**" and before "**Act**" insert "**Preservation**"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 25, following "**institution**" and before "**submit**" change "**must**" to "**shall**"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, line 29, change "**must**" to "**shall**"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 5, line 2, following "**institution**" and before "**notify**" change "**must**" to "**shall**"

On motion of Senator Martiny, the amendments were adopted.

**Floor Amendments**

Senator Riser proposed the following amendments.

**SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Senator Riser to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 179 by Senator Riser

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 22, after "**(2) "Trade" means**" insert "**to distribute,**"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, between lines 19 and 20, insert the following:  
"**(2) Federal, state, and local governments and any political subdivisions thereof as well as federal, state, and local law enforcement officials acting within their statutory authority.**"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, at the beginning of line 20, change "**(2)**" to "**(3)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 4, at the end of line 25 and the beginning of line 26, delete "**a catalog of all**" and insert "**notification of retention of**"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 5, between lines 24 and 25, insert the following:  
"**F. No provision of this Chapter is intended to restrict or limit, and is explicitly superceded by, the Louisiana Unmarked Human Burial Sites Preservation Act, pursuant to R.S. 8:671 et seq., the Louisiana Historical Cemetery Preservation Act, pursuant to R.S. 25:931 et seq., and the Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act, 25 U.S.C. 3001 et seq.**"

On motion of Senator Riser, the amendments were adopted.

The bill was read by title. Senator Riser moved the final passage of the amended bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Donahue	Morrell
Allain	Erdey	Morrish
Appel	Fannin	Peacock
Barrow	Gatti	Perry
Bishop	Hewitt	Riser
Boudreaux	LaFleur	Smith, G.
Brown	Lambert	Tarver
Carter	Luneau	Walsworth
Chabert	Martiny	Ward
Claitor	Milkovich	White
Colomb	Mills	
Cortez	Mizell	

Total - 34

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Johns	Peterson	Thompson
Long	Smith, J.	

Total - 5

The Chair declared the amended bill was passed, ordered reengrossed and sent to the House. Senator Riser moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

**SENATE BILL NO. 205—**  
BY SENATOR CARTER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:901(34), relative to the office of alcohol and tobacco control; to provide for the definition of tobacco wholesale dealers; to provide for required sales of tobacco wholesale dealers; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Carter moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Cortez	Mizell
Allain	Donahue	Morrell
Appel	Erdey	Morrish
Barrow	Fannin	Peacock
Bishop	Gatti	Perry
Boudreaux	Hewitt	Smith, G.
Brown	LaFleur	Tarver
Carter	Lambert	Walsworth
Chabert	Luneau	Ward
Claitor	Milkovich	White
Colomb	Mills	

Total - 32

NAYS

Riser  
Total - 1

April 7, 2016

ABSENT

Johns Martiny Smith, J.
Long Peterson Thompson
Total - 6

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Carter moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 215— BY SENATOR CARTER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:920(B) and (C), relative to the office of alcohol and tobacco control; to provide for the procedure for appeal of tobacco dealers; and to provide for related matters.

Floor Amendments

Senator Martiny sent up floor amendments.

SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senator Martiny on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 215 by Senator Carter

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 7, following "appeal" and before "the "delete "of"

On motion of Senator Martiny, the amendments were adopted.

The bill was read by title. Senator Carter moved the final passage of the amended bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President Cortez Mizell
Allain Donahue Morrell
Appel Erdey Morrish
Barrow Fannin Peacock
Bishop Gatti Perry
Boudreaux Hewitt Riser
Brown LaFleur Smith, G.
Carter Lambert Tarver
Chabert Luneau Walsworth
Claitor Milkovich Ward
Colomb Mills White
Total - 33

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Johns Martiny Smith, J.
Long Peterson Thompson
Total - 6

The Chair declared the amended bill was passed, ordered reengrossed and sent to the House. Senator Carter moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 255— BY SENATOR MORRELL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:802(A)(4) and to enact R.S. 26:802(A)(15) and 813, relative to alcoholic beverages; to provide for business relations of wholesalers and suppliers; to

provide for obligations of successors; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Morrell moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President Erdey Morrish
Allain Fannin Peacock
Bishop Gatti Perry
Boudreaux Hewitt Riser
Brown LaFleur Smith, G.
Carter Lambert Tarver
Chabert Luneau Walsworth
Claitor Milkovich Ward
Colomb Mills White
Cortez Mizell
Donahue Morrell
Total - 31

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Appel Long Smith, J.
Barrow Martiny Thompson
Johns Peterson
Total - 8

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Morrell moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage, Subject to Call

Bagneris Rule

Senator Long moved to invoke the rule to temporarily pass over controversial Senate Bills on Third Reading and Final Passage, Subject to Call, with the intention of taking them up later, in their regular order.

Without objection, so ordered.

Called from the Calendar

Senator Peacock asked that Senate Bill No. 18 be called from the Calendar.

SENATE BILL NO. 18—

BY SENATORS PEACOCK, BOUDREAUX, CORTEZ, LONG, MILKOVICH AND MIZELL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 11:102(B)(1), (2), (3)(introductory paragraph), (a), and (d) (introductory paragraph), (i), (ii), (iii), and (iv), (4), and (5)(a) and (b), (C), and (D), 102.1(B)(4), (5), and (6) and (C)(2), (4), (5), and (6), 102.2(B)(4) and (5) and (C)(2), (4), (5), and (6), 102.3, 542(A), (B), (C), (E), and (F), 883.1(A), (B), (C), (E), and (F), 927(B)(2)(a)(introductory paragraph) and (i) and (b)(i) and (3)(a), 1145.1(A), (B), (C), (D), and (E), and 1332(A), (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F), to enact R.S. 11:23, 102(E) and (F), 102.1(A)(4), (B)(3)(a)(iv), and (D), 102.2(A)(4), (B)(3)(a)(iv), and (D), 102.4, 102.5, 102.6, 542(D) and 883.1(D), and to repeal R.S. 11:102(B)(3)(d)(v), (vi), (vii), and (viii), 542(G), 883.1(G) and (H), 1145.1(F), and 1332(G), to provide for actuarial determinations and application of

retirement system funds without allowing, authorizing, or granting benefit improvements; to provide for the determination of required employer contributions and application of investment earnings to certain debts and accounts; to prioritize excess return allocations; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

### Floor Amendments

Senator Martiny sent up floor amendments.

#### SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senator Martiny on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 18 by Senator Peacock

##### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 28, line 1, following beginning of line and before "(B)(5)" change "Subparagraph" to "**Paragraph**"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 37, line 28, following "**to**" and before "**(B)(2)(c)**" change "**Paragraph**" to "**Subparagraph**"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 40, line 16, following "in this" and before "," change "Item" to "**Subparagraph**"

On motion of Senator Martiny, the amendments were adopted.

### Floor Amendments

Senator Peacock proposed the following amendments.

#### SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senator Peacock to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 18 by Senator Peacock

##### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, change "(a), and (d)" to "(a), (b), (c), and (d)"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete line 4, and insert "102.1(B)(2)(b), (3)(a)(i), (4), (5), and (6) and (C)(2), (3)(a), (4), (5), and (6), 102.2(B)(2)(a), (3)(a)(i), (4) and (5) and (C)(2), (3)(a),"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 1, change "(a), and" to "(a), (b), (c), and"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, delete line 3, and insert "102.1(B)(2)(b), (3)(a)(i), (4), (5), and (6) and (C)(2), (3)(a), (4), (5), and (6), 102.2(B)(2)(a), (3)(a)(i), (4) and (5) and (C)(2), (3)(a), (4), (5),"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 12, change "**actuarially-required**" to "**actuarially required**"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, line 25, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, line 3, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, line 11, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, line 18, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, line 25, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 3, line 26, change "**constitutionally-required**" to "constitutionally required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 4, line 15, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 4, line 20, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 5, delete line 5, and insert the following:

"(b) That fiscal year's payment, computed as of the first of that fiscal year and projected to the middle of that fiscal year at the ~~actuarially-assumed~~ **actuarially assumed** interest rate, taking into account consolidation with other amortization bases, if any, as provided in R.S. 11:42, 102.1, and 102.2, and using the system's amortization method specified in R.S. 11:42, necessary to amortize the unfunded accrued liability as of June 30, 1988, such unfunded accrued liability computed using the system's actuarial funding method as specified in R.S. 11:22.

(c) Except as provided in R.S. 11:102.1 and 102.2, that fiscal year's payment, computed as of the first of that fiscal year and projected to the middle of that fiscal year at the ~~actuarially-assumed~~ **actuarially assumed** interest rate, necessary to amortize the prior year's over or underpayment as a level dollar amount over a period of five years."

##### AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 5, line 8, change "**actuarially-assumed**" to "actuarially assumed"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 11, line 5, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 14, line 10, change "**actuarially-required**" to "actuarially required"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 16, line 23, change "**actuarially-assumed**" to "**actuarially assumed**"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 17, line 4, change "**actuarially-assumed**" to "**actuarially assumed**"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 17, line 29, change "**actuarially-assumed**" to "**actuarially assumed**"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 19, between lines 8 and 9, insert the following:

"(2)(a)

\* \* \*

(b) The balance in this account as of June 30, 2008, exclusive of any subaccount balance, shall be credited with interest at the system's ~~actuarially-assumed~~ **actuarially assumed** interest rate until the funds in the account are applied as provided in this Subsection."

##### AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 19, between lines 11 and 12, insert the following:

"(i) For Fiscal Year 2010-2011, the projected payment shall be the amount specified in the June 30, 2009 system valuation adopted by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee pursuant to R.S. 11:127. The ~~actuarially-required~~ **actuarially required** contribution shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 11:102 in the June 30, 2010 system valuation adopted by the committee."

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 19, line 20, change "actuarially-assumed" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 20, line 20, change "actuarially-assumed" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 20, between lines 27 and 28, insert the following:

"(3) This consolidated amortization base shall be known as the "experience account amortization base" and shall be amortized with annual payments over a thirty-year period beginning in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 as follows:

(a) For Fiscal Year 2010-2011, the projected payment shall be the amount specified in the June 30, 2009 system valuation adopted by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee pursuant to R.S. 11:127. The ~~actuarially-required~~ **actuarially required** contribution shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 11:102 in the June 30, 2010 system valuation adopted by the committee."

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 22, line 29, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 23, line 10, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 24, line 6, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 25, between lines 14 and 15, insert the following:

"(2)(a) To this base shall be applied any monies in the separate fund known alternatively as the "Texaco Account" or the "Initial Unfunded Accrued Liability Account" on June 30, 2010, and any appropriation provided in the 2009 Regular Session of the Legislature. The balance in this account as of June 30, 2008, exclusive of any subaccount balance, shall be credited with interest at the system's ~~actuarially-assumed~~ **actuarially assumed** interest rate until the funds in the account are applied as provided in this Subsection.

\* \* \*

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 25, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"(i) For Fiscal Year 2010-2011, the projected payment shall be the amount specified in the June 30, 2009 system valuation adopted by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee pursuant to R.S. 11:127. The ~~actuarially-required~~ **actuarially required** contribution shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 11:102 in the June 30, 2010 system valuation adopted by the committee."

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 25, line 26, change "actuarially-assumed" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 26, line 13, change "actuarially-assumed" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 26, between lines 20 and 21, insert the following:

"(3) This consolidated amortization base shall be known as the "experience account amortization base" and shall be amortized with annual payments over a thirty-year period beginning in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 calculated as follows:

(a) For Fiscal Year 2010-2011, the projected payment shall be the amount specified in the June 30, 2009 system valuation adopted by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee pursuant to R.S. 11:127. The ~~actuarially-required~~ **actuarially required** contribution shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 11:102 in the June 30, 2010 system valuation adopted by the committee."

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 28, line 22, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 29, line 26, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 30, line 11, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 30, line 20, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 38

On page 31, line 24, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 39

On page 32, line 9, change "~~actuarially-assumed~~" to "**actuarially assumed**"

AMENDMENT NO. 40

On page 37, lines 14 and 15, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 41

On page 37, lines 17 and 18, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 42

On page 44, lines 19 and 20, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 43

On page 44, line 25 and 26, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 44

On page 52, lines 22 and 23, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 45

On page 52, lines 25 and 26, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 46

On page 58, lines 12 and 13, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 47

On page 58, lines 15 and 16, change "~~consumer price index, U.S. city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)~~" to "CPI-U"

AMENDMENT NO. 48

On page 61, delete lines 2 through 5, and insert the following: "increased each year in an amount equal to the increase in the ~~consumer price index (United States city average for all urban~~

consumers (CPI-U)), as prepared by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, CPI-U for the preceding calendar year, if any. Effective"

AMENDMENT NO. 49

On page 61, delete lines 7 through 10, and insert the following: "increased each year in an amount equal to the increase in the consumer price index (United States city average for all urban consumers (CPI-U)), as prepared by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, CPI-U for the twelve-month period ending on the"

On motion of Senator Peacock, the amendments were adopted.

**Floor Amendments**

Senator Peacock proposed the following amendments.

**SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Senator Peacock to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 18 by Senator Peacock

AMENDMENT NO. 1

Delete Senate Floor Amendments No. 2, 4, 25, and 33, proposed by Senator Peacock and adopted by the Senate on April 7, 2016, designated as SFBNSB18 CORLEYM 1256.

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete line 4, and insert "102.1(B)(2)(b), (3)(a)(i), (4), (5), and (6) and (C)(2), (3)(a) and (c), (4), (5), and (6), 102.2(B)(2)(a), (3)(a)(i), (4), and (5) and (C)(2), (3)(a) and (c)."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, delete line 3, and insert "102.1(B)(2)(b), (3)(a)(i), (4), (5), and (6) and (C)(2), (3)(a) and (c), (4), (5), and (6), 102.2(B)(2)(a), (3)(a)(i), (4), and (5) and (C)(2), (3)(a) and (c), (4), (5)."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 9, change "§ 23." to "§23."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 7, line 13, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 7, line 17, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 11, line 18, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 11, line 22, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 14, line 22, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 14, line 26, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 15, line 1, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 16, line 1, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 16, line 4, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 18, line 20, change "Notwithstanding" to "Notwithstanding the provisions of"

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 18, line 24, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 18, line 27, change "the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year" to "Fiscal Year 2019-2020"

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 19, line 4, delete "and Subparagraph (C)(3)(d)"

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 19, line 15, change "the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year" to "Fiscal Year 2019-2020"

AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 19, line 16, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 20, delete line 28, insert the following:

"(3) This consolidated amortization base shall be known as the "experience account amortization base" and shall be amortized with annual payments over a thirty-year period beginning in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 as follows:

(a) For Fiscal Year 2010-2011, the projected payment shall be the amount specified in the June 30, 2009 system valuation adopted by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee pursuant to R.S. 11:127. The ~~actuarially-required~~ actuarially required contribution shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 11:102 in the June 30, 2010 system valuation adopted by the committee.

\* \* \*

(c) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2018-2019, the outstanding balance shall be amortized over the remaining period with annual ~~level-dollar~~ level-dollar payments."

AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 22, line 7, change "Subparagraph" to "Paragraph"

AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 24, line 26, change "Notwithstanding" to "Notwithstanding the provisions of"

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 25, line 1, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 25, line 10, delete "and Subparagraph (C)(3)(d)"

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 25, line 21, change "the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year" to "Fiscal Year 2019-2020"

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 25, line 22, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 26, delete line 21, insert the following:

"(3) This consolidated amortization base shall be known as the "experience account amortization base" and shall be amortized with annual payments over a thirty-year period beginning in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 as follows:

(a) For Fiscal Year 2010-2011, the projected payment shall be the amount specified in the June 30, 2009 system valuation adopted by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee pursuant to R.S. 11:127. The ~~actuarially-required~~ actuarially required contribution shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of R.S. 11:102 in the June 30, 2010 system valuation adopted by the committee.

\* \* \*

(c) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2018-2019, the outstanding balance shall be amortized over the remaining period with annual ~~level-dollar~~ level-dollar payments."

April 7, 2016

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 29, line 9, change "Notwithstanding" to "Notwithstanding the provisions of"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 29, lines 13 and 14, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar"

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 29, line 16, change "the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year" to "Fiscal Year 2019-2020"

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 29, delete lines 18-20 and insert the following: "reamortization shall be reamortized with annual level-dollar payments calculated as provided in R.S. 11:102 over the remainder of the amortization period originally established for that amortization base."

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 30, line 10, change "2004" to "2014"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 31, line 7, change "Notwithstanding" to "Notwithstanding the provisions of"

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 31, line 11, change "level dollar" to "level-dollar" and on line 14, change "the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year" to "Fiscal Year 2019-2020"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 31, delete lines 16-18 and insert: "reamortization shall be reamortized with annual level-dollar payments calculated as provided in R.S. 11:102 over the remainder of the amortization period originally established for that amortization base."

On motion of Senator Peacock, the amendments were adopted.

The bill was read by title. Senator Peacock moved the final passage of the amended bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President Cortez Mizell
Allain Donahue Morrell
Appel Erdey Morrish
Barrow Fannin Peacock
Bishop Gatti Perry
Boudreaux Hewitt Riser
Brown LaFleur Smith, G.
Carter Lambert Tarver
Chabert Luneau Walsworth
Claitor Milkovich Ward
Colomb Mills White
Total - 33

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Johns Martiny Smith, J.
Long Peterson Thompson
Total - 6

The Chair declared the amended bill was passed, ordered reengrossed and sent to the House. Senator Peacock moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

Called from the Calendar

Senator Luneau asked that Senate Bill No. 258 be called from the Calendar.

SENATE BILL NO. 258

BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 22:997.1, relative to the refilling of topical ophthalmic prescriptions; to require coverage for refills under certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Luneau moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President Cortez Mizell
Allain Donahue Morrell
Appel Erdey Morrish
Barrow Fannin Peacock
Bishop Gatti Perry
Boudreaux Hewitt Smith, G.
Brown LaFleur Tarver
Carter Lambert Walsworth
Chabert Luneau Ward
Claitor Milkovich White
Colomb Mills
Total - 32

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Johns Peterson Thompson
Long Riser
Martiny Smith, J.
Total - 7

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Luneau moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

Rules Suspended

Senator Appel asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to recommit a bill.

SENATE BILL NO. 447

BY SENATOR APPEL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 41:1212(G) and 1215(B) and to enact R.S. 41:1215(D), (E), and (F), relative to public benefit corporations; to provide relative to certain procedures and requirements; to provide relative to leases or subleases of immovable property owned, leased or controlled by a public benefit corporation; to provide certain terms and conditions; and to provide for related matters.

Senator Appel moved to recommit the bill from the Committee on Judiciary A to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

Without objection, so ordered.

Privileged Report of the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs

ENROLLMENTS

Senator Peterson, Chairman on behalf of the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs, submitted the following report:

April 7, 2016

To the President and Members of the Senate:

I am directed by your Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs to submit the following report:

The following Senate Concurrent Resolution has been properly enrolled:

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 45— BY SENATORS PEACOCK, ALARIO, ALLAIN, APPEL, BARROW, BISHOP, BOUDREAUX, BROWN, CARTER, CHABERT, CLAITOR, COLOMB, CORTEZ, DONAHUE, ERDEY, FANNIN, GATTI, HEWITT, JOHNS, LAFLEUR, LAMBERT, LONG, LUNEAU, MARTINY, MILKOVICH, MILLS, MIZELL, MORRELL, MORRISH, PERRY, PETERSON, RISER, GARY SMITH, JOHN SMITH, TARVER, THOMPSON, WALSWORTH, WARD AND WHITE

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To express the sincere condolences of the Legislature of Louisiana upon the passing of the Honorable Joe C. LeSage Jr., jurist, civic leader, and former state senator and to commend the legacy of public service that he leaves to the community of Shreveport and the state of Louisiana.

Respectfully submitted, KAREN CARTER PETERSON Chairman

The foregoing Senate Concurrent Resolution was signed by the President of the Senate.

Message from the House

SIGNED HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

April 7, 2016

To the Honorable President and Members of the Senate:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Speaker of the House of Representatives has signed the following House Concurrent Resolutions:

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 41— BY REPRESENTATIVE STEVE CARTER A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION To designate Wednesday, April 6, 2016, as Y Day in Louisiana.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 42— BY REPRESENTATIVE STOKES A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION To designate Wednesday, April 6, 2016, as the National Multiple Sclerosis Society Louisiana State Action Day at the state capitol and to encourage efforts to inform the citizens of Louisiana about multiple sclerosis.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 45— BY REPRESENTATIVE MONTOU CET A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION To commend Michael Goss upon becoming the 2016 Kiwanis Regional Spelling Bee Champion.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 48— BY REPRESENTATIVES LEGER, ABRAMSON, BAGNERIS, BOUIE, GARY CARTER, GAROFALO, JIMMY HARRIS, HILFERTY, LEOPOLD, AND MORENO AND SENATORS APPEL, BISHOP, CARTER, HEWITT, MORRELL, AND PETERSON

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate Wednesday, April 6, 2016, as New Orleans Day at the Louisiana Legislature, to commend the city of New Orleans, and to provide suitable observance of this special day.

and asked that the President of the Senate affix his signature to the same.

Respectfully submitted, ALFRED W. SPEER Clerk of the House of Representatives

The House Concurrent Resolutions contained herein were signed by the President of the Senate.

ATTENDANCE ROLL CALL

PRESENT

Table with 3 columns: Name, Donahue, Mills. Lists names of present members and their corresponding initials.

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns: Name, Smith, J., Thompson. Lists names of absent members.

Leaves of Absence

The following leaves of absence were asked for and granted:

Table with 4 columns: Name, Days, Name, Days. Lists members and their granted leaves of absence.

Announcements

The following committee meetings for April 11, 2016, were announced:

Table with 4 columns: Committee Name, Time, Room Name. Lists committee meetings.

Adjournment

On motion of Senator Walsworth, at 10:15 o'clock A.M. the Senate adjourned until Monday, April 11, 2016, at 3:00 o'clock P.M.

The President of the Senate declared the Senate adjourned.

GLENN A. KOEPP Secretary of the Senate

DIANE O' QUIN Journal Clerk

